
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

									Gwen Orlowski, Executive Director 

April 28, 2020 
 
 

, Director 
Office of Special Education Policy and Dispute Resolution 
New Jersey Department of Education 
100 Riverview Plaza, P.O. Box 500 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0500 
 
Re: L.L. & A.L. o/b/o G.L. v. Ringwood Pub. Schs. 
       Petition for Due Process 
 
Dear : 
 
I represent Petitioners  (L.L.) and   (A.L.) and their son,   

(G.L.), in the above-mentioned matter.  Please accept this letter as Petitioners’ petition for due 

process against Respondent Ringwood Public Schools (Ringwood). 

 

Ringwood violated G.L.’s rights under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 

42 U.S.C.A. §§ 1400-1482, and its implementing New Jersey regulations, N.J.A.C. 6A:4-1.1 to -

10.2(b), for failing to provide the necessary amount of related services – namely occupational 

therapy, speech therapy, and specialized reading instruction –  in accordance with his 

individualized educational program (IEP) since school closed on March 16, 2020, due to the 

COVID-19 pandemic.  Therefore, Petitioners are seeking the following relief: 

 

a.) A Declaratory Ruling that Ringwood violated G.L.’s rights under the IDEA by failing to 

provide the necessary amount of occupational therapy, speech therapy, and specialized 

reading instruction since March 16, 2020; 

b.) An Order requiring Ringwood to provide G.L. with the requested related services 

immediately;  

c.) An Order requiring Ringwood to provide G.L. compensatory related services; and  
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The IDEA and its implementing New Jersey regulations require that school districts provide 

classified students between the ages of three and twenty-one with a free, appropriate public 

education (FAPE).  20 U.S.C.A. §§ 1400-1482; N.J.A.C. 6A:14-1.1 to -10.2(b).  In fulfilling its 

FAPE obligation, the school district must develop an IEP for the student, and the IEP must be 

reasonably calculated to confer some educational benefit.  Hendrick Hudson Dist. Bd. of Educ. v. 

Rowley, 458 U.S. 176 (1982).  The Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit has clarified that this 

"educational benefit" means it must be "more than trivial, and must be significant" and 

"meaningful."  Polk v. Central Susquehanna Intermediate Unit 16, 853 F.2d 171, 180-85 (3d Cir. 

1999); Ridgewood Bd. of Educ. v. N.E., 172 F.3d 238, 247-48 (3d Cir. 1999).  

 

The IEP is to be developed by the IEP team that includes the parent and child study team. 

N.J.A.C. 6A:14-2.3(k).  The IEP outlines, among other things, the specialized educational and 

related services the student needs to achieve FAPE.  N.J.A.C. 6A:14-3.7.  The school district of 

residence is responsible for making sure the IEP is implemented without delay.  N.J.A.C. 6A:14-

3.7.  This responsibility does not change during the COVID-19 pandemic. Press Release, U.S. 

Dept. of Educ., Secretary DeVos Reiterates Learning Must Continue for All Students, Declines 

to Seek Congressional Waivers to FAPE, LRE Requirements of IDEA (Apr. 27, 2020) (4/27/20 

Press Release, Secretary DeVos), https://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/secretary-devos-

reiterates-learning-must-continue-all-students-declines-seek-congressional-waivers-fape-lre-

requirements; Supplemental Fact Sheet Addressing the Risk of COVID-19 in Preschool, 

Elementary, and Secondary Schools While Serving Children with Disabilities, 76 IDELR 104 

(OSERS/OCR 2020). 

 

In the present matter, Ringwood, as the school district of residence, is responsible for 

implementing G.L.’s IEP that calls for the following related services: speech therapy once a 

week, occupational therapy once a month, and specialized reading instruction twice a week.  

(A.L. Cert. 2.)  Through no fault of Petitioners’, the COVID-19 pandemic forced Ringwood to 

close its schools on March 16, 2020.  Id.  While Ringwood is providing online instruction for 

G.L.’s core subjects, it has only provided three online meetings with the reading specialist and no 

online occupational therapy and speech therapy services as of the date of the filing of this 

petition.  (A.L. Cert. 5.)  Ringwood is withholding further related services online because of its 
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inappropriate demand that G.L.’s parents consent to a waiver of all potential claims pertaining to 

the provision of related services online.  (A.L. Cert. 5, Exs. F, H.)  Therefore, Ringwood’s failure 

to abide by his IEP violates G.L.’s rights under the IDEA.   

 
G.L. IS ENTITLED TO MAINTAIN THE RIGHT TO COMPENSATORY EDUCATION 
SHOULD RINGWOOD FAIL TO PROVIDE FAPE DURING THE COVID-19 
PANDEMIC. 
 

If a classified student is deprived of FAPE for a period of time, compensatory education is a 

judicially-created right available to the student even during the COVID-19 pandemic.  Ferren C. 

v. Sch. Dist. of Phila., 612 F.3d 712, 717 (3d Cir. 2010) (quoting Lester H. v. Gilhool, 916 F.2d 

865, 872 (3d Cir. 1990)); Questions and Answers on Providing Servs. to Children With 

Disabilities During the Coronavirus Disease 2019 Outbreak, 76 IDELR 77 (EDU 2020) (stating 

that compensatory education should be considered following school closure).  The purpose of 

compensatory education is to replace the educational services the classified student should have 

received in the first place with the aim of placing the student in the same position he or she 

would have been had the district not violated the IDEA.  Ferren C., 612 F.3d at 717-18 (citing 

Reid v. Dist. of Columbia, 401 F.3d 516, 518 (D.C. Cir. 2005)).  

 

In the present matter, Ringwood is holding G.L.’s parents hostage by conditioning the provision 

of related services online during this pandemic on the consent to a waiver of all possible claims 

that would include compensatory education pertaining to such services.  (A.L. Cert. 5, Exs. F, 

H.)  As a result, G.L. has not been receiving the necessary amount of occupational therapy, 

speech therapy, and specialized reading instruction required by his current IEP since school 

closed on March 16, 2020.  (A.L. Cert. 5.).  Therefore, Ringwood’s apparent ulterior motive of 

depriving G.L.’s right to seek compensatory education violates the IDEA as well.   

 

CONCLUSION 

 

For the reasons stated above, Petitioners respectively requests the following emergent relief be 

granted:  
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a.) A Declaratory Ruling that Ringwood violated G.L.’s rights under the IDEA by failing to 

provide the necessary amount of occupational therapy, speech therapy, and specialized 

reading instruction in accordance with his IEP since March 16, 2020; 

b.) An Order requiring Ringwood to provide G.L. with the requested related services 

immediately; 

c.) An Order requiring Ringwood to provide G.L. compensatory related services; and  

d.) Any other relief that is necessary and proper. 

 

 

 

         Sincerely, 
 
         DISABILITY RIGHTS 
         NEW JERSEY 
 
 
 
Dated: April 28, 2020             _________________________ 
         Robert A. Robinson 	 	
	 	
	
	

	

	
 




